

780 N. Commercial Street, Manchester, NH 03101

Public Service Company of New Hampshire P. O. Box 330 Manchester, NH 03105-0330 (603) 634-2701

Hallsr@psnh.com

A Northeast Utilities Company

Stephen R. Hall
Rate & Regulatory Services Manager

October 3, 2012

By Electronic Mail Only

Douglas L. Patch Orr & Reno Professional Association One Eagle Square, P.O. Box 3550 Concord, NH 03302-3550

Re: DE 11-250; Public Service Company of New Hampshire Investigation of Scrubber Costs and Cost Recovery

Dear Attorney Patch:

I enclose Public Service Company of New Hampshire's Objections to the Fifth Set of Data Requests of TransCanada in the above-captioned proceeding.

Very truly yours,

Stephen R. Hall

Rate & Regulatory Services Manager

Stephen R. Hell

Enclosure

cc: Discovery Service List (by electronic mail only)

Public Service Company of New Hampshire Docket No. DE 11-250

Data Request TC-05 Dated: 09/27/2012 Q-TC-004 Page 1 of 1

Witness: No Witness Request from: TransCanada

Question:

Did any PSNH employee or representative ever discuss with or put in writing to any state official, including any state representative or state senator or any employee of DES, the fact that the Sargent and Lundy estimate contained, as the Jacobs report notes, the following caveat: "No specific mercury guarantee was included in S&L pricing since it was not available at this time from suppliers." If so, please provide copies of any such written documentation.

Response:

PSNH objects to this question. The requested information is not relevant to the prudence of PSNH's compliance with the mandate contained in the Mercury Reduction law, nor is it reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence in this proceeding.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire Docket No. DE 11-250

Data Request TC-05 Dated: 09/27/2012 Q-TC-006 Page 1 of 1

Witness: Request from: No Witness TransCanada

Question:

Is it true, as the Jacobs report says, that the Sargent and Lundy estimate was done "in an expedited time line and with no vendor guarantees in writing". If so, was this fact ever communicated to any state official? If so, please provide copies of any such documentation.

Response:

PSNH objects to this question. The requested information is not relevant to the prudence of PSNH's compliance with the mandate contained in the Mercury Reduction law, nor is it reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence in this proceeding.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire Docket No. DE 11-250

Data Request TC-05 Dated: 09/27/2012 Q-TC-005 Page 1 of 1

Witness: Request from: No Witness TransCanada

Question:

Did any PSNH employee or representative ever discuss with or put in writing to any state official, including any state representative or state senator or any employee of DES, the fact that the Sargent and Lundy estimate was, as the Jacobs report notes, "conceptual", "generic" or "not site specific". If so, please provide copies of any such written documentation.

Response:

PSNH objects to this question. The requested information is not relevant to the prudence of PSNH's compliance with the mandate contained in the Mercury Reduction law, nor is it reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence in this proceeding.

HB 1678-FN - AS INTRODUCED - Page 7 -

LBAO 06-2816 12/12/05

HB 1673-FN - FISCAL NOTE

AN ACT

relative to the reduction of mercury emissions.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Department of Environmental Services and the Public Utilities Commission stated this bill will have an indeterminable impact on state, county and local expenditures in future years.

There will be no fiscal impact on state, county and local revenue.

METHODOLOGY:

The Department of Environmental Services (DES) and the Public Utilities Commission (PUC) state this bill intends to reduce mercury emissions from Merrimack Station, a coal burning electric generation plant in Bow, New Hampshire, currently owned by Public Service Company of New Hampshire (PSNH). As required, PSNH would install a wet flue desulphurization scrubber system at the plant. The technology would significantly reduce the plant's sulfur dioxide emissions and is expected to reduce the plant's mercury emissions by at least 80%. The equipment is to be installed no later than July 1, 2013. PSNH estimates that the installation will be at a cost not to exceed \$250 million in 2013 dollars or \$197 million in 2005 dollars. Any rate impact, therefore, would most likely be felt after the period of time identified in this fiscal note. In assessing the rate impact for the control equipment, the \$250 million would be offset to some degree by savings resulting from PSNH's reduced need to purchase sulfur dioxide allowances, and additional revenues, as PSNH would be able to sell excess sulfur dioxide allowances if it achieves greater than 80% mercury reduction. Based on PSNH's estimates, the cost charged to the state, counties and localities in the first year of operation of the scrubber system would be approximately \$1.9 million. After 10 years of operation, those entities would experience a net savings of approximately \$500,000 per year. PSNH analyzed 3 different cost impact scenarios based on a low (\$573/ton), moderate (\$1,073/ton), and high (\$1,573/ton) SO2 allowance price. DES states that the current price exceeds \$1,400/ton. At the current price, over the 10-year time period, the project should result in net savings to PSNH.

HB 1673-FW - AS AMENDED BY THE HOUSE

22Mar2006... 0936h

2006 SESSION

06-2816 06/03

HOUSE BILL

1673-FN

AN ACT

relative to the reduction of mercury emissions.

SPONSORS:

Rep. Ross, Hills 3; Rep. Slocum, Hills 6; Rep. Kaen, Straf 7; Rep. Phinizy, Sull 5; Rep. Maxfield, Merr 6; Sen. Green, Dist 6; Sen. Johnson, Dist 2; Sen.

Burling, Dist 5; Sen. Odell, Dist 8; Sen. Hassan, Dist 23

COMMITTEE:

Science, Technology and Energy

ANALYSIS

This bill provides for an 80 percent reduction of mercury emissions from coal-burning power plants by requiring the installation of scrubber technology no later than July 1, 2013 and provides economic incentives for earlier installation and greater reductions in emissions.

Explanation: Matter added to current law appears in bold italies.

Matter removed from current law appears [in brackets and struckthrough.]

Matter which is either (a) all new or (b) repealed and reenacted appears in regular type.

Date: April 11, 2006 Time: 3:40 P.M.

Room: LOB RM 102

 M^{ν}

The Senate Committee on Energy and Economic Development held a hearing on the following:

HB 1673-FN relative to the reduction of mercury emissions.

Members of Committee present:

Senator Odell
Senator Letourneau
Senator Boyce
Senator Bragdon
Senator Burling

The Chair, Senator Bob Odell, opened the hearing on HB 1673-FN and indicated that anyone who wishes to speak today to please make sure you have signed up, because when we get done the sign up list, that will be it. And the second part of it is that, I know people feel strongly about this bill, both ways. I hope you'll be collegial with everyone. And third, if you could limit your comments to new information, not previously stated by predecessors, speakers, I would appreciate it very much. With that I'll call on the sponsor of the bill, Representative Larry Ross to introduce the bill.

Representative Larry Ross, Hillsborough, District 3: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Good afternoon Representative Ross.

Representative Ross: I'm glad to be here today and if you don't mind I would like to give you just a little background on how we got here today with HB 1673-FN. And, first of all I would like to thank the members of the Senate, that about one year ago sent SB 128 to the House was insurance. That bill came over and as you know was retained by the Science, Technology and Energy Committee for further study and I can assure you that it received plenty of study and plenty of emphasis in the Committee. A lot of work was going into it and primarily the outcome of the Committee deliberations of SB 128 were that with everything that was going on in the energy environment at that time, it makes sense to

W/

split it because there are two parts to it, carbon dioxide and the mercury bill. And about that time REGIE came in. So it makes sense that we ought to try to make sure that what was in the bill in the form of what was coming down the pike, was the regency of gas use. And this other Committee put that out and based on the assumption that we would be addressing this greatly in the future, and we are doing that as we speak today.

And that left the mercury side of the bill. And the Committee recognized that the Senate put a lot of work into that bill, but also recognized that there was a very limiting time constraint. As a matter of fact, many of you perhaps participated in this so-called "midnight amendment," when we tried to fix it and get it over to the House as quickly as possible, and we appreciate the fact that we had all of that to work with to begin with. But the Committee was faced with a choice if we were to work on the bill and amend it, then where does it go? There would be probably significant revisions to the bill; as it turns out they are pretty significant revisions. It was pretty well assumed that the bill would go back to the Senate for concurrence, and quite possibly end up in a Committee of Conference. And there was a problem for some of the members of the Committee that there would not be a full and public hearing in the Senate on the amendment. And so for that reason a course of action that derived was to recommend ITL on SB 128 and use that as the genesis for a new bill, 1673. And that is essentially how we got here today with HB 1673. daru **sa**ra balan

Over the summer last year, a lot of developments took place. First of all, many of the stakeholders who were part of SB 128 were asked to participate in stakeholders' meetings to suggest revisions to the old SB 128, and that happened. We had a very good group of folks, including the Governor's office, the Governor's Office of Energy and Planning, Public Service of New Hampshire, Department of Environmental Services, environmental organizations and the office of Consumer Advocate I believe was involved. And they worked over a long period of time and finally just in time for their submission of LSR's last fall, came forward with a draft bill because we had killed 128, a draft bill 1673, which is the basis for what we're considering here today.

I'd like to comment on the support schedule. You'll notice along with some sponsors and co-sponsors that are ... that were interested in this bill and signed on to co-sponsor it during this process. But more importantly is the coalition of support that has evolved. It's been both parties, Democratic and Republican, Senate and the House, House leadership from the Speaker down to the Minority Leader, who again, the Governor's office, very, very strong support on both sides of the General Court and both sides of the political process.

M

But what we came out with was I think I've best described as a very reasonable bill, with the primary objective of removing mercury from the environment. And we heard lots of testimony about the effects of mercury and the hot spots in some areas of the state.

A bill which provides for a reasonable reduction in mercury, at a reasonable cost, and I will say it's reasonable and affordable. In a reasonable period of time, by a reasonable group of people, and that bill calls for reduction of mercury of at least eighty percent by the year 2013, and that's only seven years from now and that cost of over two hundred million dollars, depending on whether we talk about our current year or 2013 ...

Senator Robert K. Boyce, D. 4: Mr. Chairman, could we suspend a moment.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Yeah.

Senator Robert K. Boyce, D. 4: Could we either have the door closed or have somebody go clear the hallway? I can barely hear him.

<u>Representative Ross</u>: At a cost of over two hundred million dollars in current ... I lost my train of thought.

Senator Robert K. Boyce, D. 4: Sorry.

Representative Ross: That's okay. By the installation of two methods of technology, one in the short term and the near term of mercury reduction in a near timeframe. We have the technology that's referred to as the "Sobin" technology and as many of you know, he owns a facility. Public Service of New Hampshire at this time are working with the DOE, Department of Energy, in a pilot program to ... and they have received a grant to do that of around two and a half million dollars, and that's why Public Service of New Hampshire ... and they're developing a five million dollar project to develop mercury reduction and capabilities with this activated carbon injective technology over the next two years, so that we should be able to see significant reductions in mercury within a two year timeframe. And by significant, we had an experience last summer with another experiment where they, a vendor ... that perhaps Representative Maxfield might of characterized properly, but I won't repeat terminology, and it was not a very good outcome. But with this experiment with the Department of Energy and really professionals, and they do pilot programs and these kinds of programs throughout the country on many different kinds of power plants.

and the same of th

The Representative from the DOE testified to the Committee that it's possible to achieve fifty to seventy percent reductions in mercury using the Sobin technology.

The other form of technology involves the installation of scrubbers in the stacks of the two plants in Merrimack, Unit I and Unit II. It has been shown that this scrubber technology, in some cases has achieved mercury reductions of ninety percent. The bill calls for at least eighty percent and that's tied to the economics of the bill, the availability of vendors, guarantees that might be required in order to finance this project. And so, with the combinations of the two technologies, one short-term and the scrubbers longer term, I've used just some hypothetical number. If the mercury inputs to the plant say were a hundred pounds per year, as derived from testing the coal, and if the mercury in that coal can be reduced by activated carbon injection as it goes through the process by fifty percent, we're down to fifty pounds of mercury. And if in fact, then the scrubbers are installed and they can reduce eighty percent, we've taken another forty pounds away, and so we're right there at ninety percent, and we fully expect that they'll do better in both cases.

Now, with regard to the timeframe, we have access to some pretty sharp folks on the Science, Technology and Energy Committee, and the one who is Representative Itse who makes a living in the emissions control technology arena. And we asked Representative Itse, with his background, and Representative Chase who's a member of the Committee to coordinate on developing the project schedule for the completion of the installation of the scrubbers; and if I could hand those out?

Please see submission of Representative Larry Ross entitled, "Merrimack Station – Unit 1 and Unit 2, Scrubber and Auxiliary Systems Schedule," attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #1.

They looked at this extensively and basically what it says, if you have to go through the steps that are listed on the side in a reasonable manner, in order to spend two hundred and fifty million dollars over seven years, than this is the chart that's critical. The red lines are a critical path. And that means that one has to be done before another in a reasonable timeframe. And the best we could do is admit to 2013.

And once you start trying to squeeze that in, then you start jeopardizing the availability of equipment, rates on loans that are required, increased risk perhaps, or strikes, or competition for the Stuber technology, waiting periods, delivery times and all of those things, so that 2013, as I

Jac

indicated is a very reasonable timeframe to expect this project to be completed. Then there was also a question about the early emissions we needed before 2013, and of course that's where the carbon technology comes from. We fully expect that there will be significant reductions within the two year window, at the end of the two years, that's when that project is scheduled for completion.

There was some concern about not locking in some specific amount during that two year period, but, like I tried to indicate, that we have really an eternal program that's been proven in other places. These plants are unique. We don't know exactly what those numbers will be and we thought it was inappropriate to try to legislate given that technology and the state of the art.

With regard to the testimony that indicated that we could do more than ninety percent. I'll refer back to SB 128, which had ninety percent in it, but it also included mitigation, and by mitigation, then if there could be reductions off-site, which could be counted against that ninety percent; whether it be cleaning out mercury in the traps of laboratory sinks or whether it's thermometer programs, or any other way that could be applied towards the ninety percent. So in effect, we were talking about eighty-two percent on-site is the number I recall.

The most important thing, or one of the most important things in addition to the alleviation of a public health concern, was the reduction of sulfur dioxide which is accomplished by the same scrubbers that we would work with, up to ninety percent. And why is that important? It's because right now Public Service of New Hampshire is having to buy credits, SO₂ credits, which are an important part of the factors which caused acid rain and those kind of things. Is that ... Public Service of New Hampshire is having to buy credits, right now, to comply with federal and state regulations for reduction in sulfur dioxide. It doesn't mean it's being reduced now. It just means that the rate payers are having to pay to buy compliance so that the ninety percent reduction in SO₂... that's a heck of a cost avoidance. It's estimated to become at least twenty or thirty million dollars a year that the rate payers don't have to pay. And that's really a double bonus, we get the mercury reductions, we get the SO₂ reductions, we don't have to buy SO₂ credits and that cost avoidance can be used to alleviate the costs of the two hundred million dollars that we're talking about.

So then there was the question of, "What are we doing with mercury credits?" Everybody agreed that we didn't want to be in a CAP A Program with mercury however if possible, within our current regulations for the DES to credit manager up to ... to be able to convert mercury credits to SO_2 credits. And some folks object to that because it looks like we're

de

subsidizing some plants perhaps in Indiana or Illinois, but I'd like to point out that nobody is going to be selling those credits. They're going to be accumulated and it will further reduce our need to buy credits to be in compliance. That is additional cost avoidance. And if we don't recognize the value of those credits in that manner, I believe the rate payers are leaving millions of dollars on the table if we can't take advantage of it.

So in a nutshell, I would ask you to favorably consider the work that's going into SB 128, and as you've all been to 1673, and to favorably consider, "ought to pass" on the bill that you have before you today. Because, as I indicated, it's been worked out, with a consensus of stakeholder bipartisan, as strong as it's worded and it's a reasonable reduction, and it's a conservative reduction at a reasonable cost, and affordable cost, in a reasonable period of time.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'll answer questions.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you, Representative Ross. Thank you for your testimony. Questions for Representative Ross? Senator Letourneau.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Could you ... you talked about eighty percent reduction. Could you put that in terms of how much mercury that really involves, or how many pounds of stuff is going in the air?

Representative Ross: I believe the numbers that were floating around with SB 128 was in the order of one hundred and twenty-four pounds of mercury a year. And at eighty percent of that would be the net outcome of, whether it was one twenty-eight and at eighty-two percent of the (inaudible), so eighty percent plus, in this case ... so eighty percent of one twenty-four.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: I think he figured that we'd do the math. Thank you.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Any other questions? If not, thank you, very much for being here and I want, I think, been involved in, as its been mostly as an observer for the past year or so. I commend you and those that you work with for coming together and bringing what I think in the legislative process is a ... gives us credibility and stature and that is to build consensus. No one in a democracy is always happy when they go home, and it's a business of compromise, and you've been a great leader in bringing that consensus and that compromise to us.

Representative Ross: Mr. Chairman, I think the credit goes to the Committee. Thank you.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you. Thank the Committee on our behalf. I'm going to call on Senator Martha Fuller Clark.

Senator Martha Fuller Clark, D. 24: Senator Odell, I signed in support of the bill, but I don't need to speak.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Oh, okay.

Senator Martha Fuller Clark, D. 24: Thank you.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: All right. And I'll call on Representative Jay Phinizy.

Representative Jay Phinizy: Good afternoon Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Welcome to the Committee.

Representative Jay Phinizy: For the record, I'm Jay Phinizy and I represent Acworth, Charlestown and Langdon in Sullivan County. I'm co-sponsor of this bill and I signed up in support of the bill, however I have reservations and I would like to speak to some of those reservations. I've made observations on where I think the bill could be improved even further. In the spirit of compromise, I think it's important that this Committee look at these recommendations and suggestions.

At the outset, what I'd like to do is I'd like to discuss this almost as if it were a contract and an agreement between a company and the state. And, in essence, that's what it will be over the next few years. Once we get into this contract and agreement the base will be tied. Some people would sell, well, we can quite possibly change these terms of agreement later on, but I don't think that will allow to be favorable to the company or to the people. So therefore, what I'd like you all to do now, over the next couple weeks, is look very hard at this bill, and look very hard at some of the ramifications that it may have. You'll be hearing from someone in testimony a little later on today regarding a proposed amendment or suggest the recommendations for an amendment, and I basically, wholeheartedly support some of these recommendations because I think they have great value.

Right now, if you look at the bill, one of the things that I've found problematic with it, and there's some things that I like very much agree with this bill, but one of the things that I find problematic with it is the

400

w

way they essentially bundle the mercury tabulations. And you'll see on Page 2, the Section 125-0:12 Definitions; and they talk about affected sources, and that's in line 10. And then we talk about base line mercury emissions, and that's on Line 12. And you'll see here it says, "Baseline emissions means the total annual mercury emissions from all of the affected sources, calculated in accordance with RSA 125:0:14.

In essence, the way I read this bill and the way I'd like to see it changed is be to calculated but calibrate in view of the emissions on a plant-byplant basis. And I think that's critically important. Therefore, I think what you do is you get a far better reading from the situation. You'd find out that you'd have a far better analysis of just exactly how one plant is doing versus the other, which is Schiller versus Bow and Merrimack. There is a change in here that I do agree with wholeheartedly and the Chairman of the Science and Technology Committee and I did agree to this change and that's on Page 3 and its Line 24. And it talks about the reporting by June 30, 2007 and annually thereafter. And I think this is an excellent idea because essentially what this does is that it essentially keeps tabs of what's going on with the progress of this entire installation process. However, I would like to see that shortened. And I think it would make more sense to have that on a semi-annual basis. That way, if there seems to be problems, the legislature and the state can react more quickly than on an annual basis. One of the problems I do have with that however, is that once we enter into this agreement, and once the plant essentially or the company starts dealing with specific items and specific installation procedures than essentially, I don't think there's any turning back. That leads me to the next point.

I think that the deadlines are way too far out. And the reason I think that they are way too far out is that, and I'll refer to the EPA Report, as well as other people would refer to, quite simply some of the other states that are at hand. Right now, if you look at this bill and if you look at an out of sight of controlled mercury emissions from 2/05 electric utility boilers and it's an EPA Air Pollution Prevention Control Division in court, it states specifically, and it lists various different kinds of retrofit and technology to be able to put onto this system, essentially says, that if you applied what they call "Selective Catalytic Reduction," which I believe this plant already has, the major plant, an FGG of PM of mercury control system, that these installations could prepare within three to four years. So when we enter into this contract and when you start to deal with this issue, what I really think is more important is that we need to keep a very short time line and then we allow that time line to be relaxed, if necessary, if we find that there are technical problems. Consistent with that, the current bill also speaks to some very, very specific technology requirements, and I do agree with the activating carbon injection system, however, I think what probably would make far greater sense is if this

bill were to follow the same format as 128 and merely talk about requiring the company to come into, what we call reduction compliance, and allow them to be very specific and deal with that kind of technology without us basically mandating this specific technology. I think it's very important that we don't micro-manage. I would sight the most recent Maryland bill. And I'll give you a quote there. And I think it's something that we ought to follow. It says, "a person that owns, leases, operates or controls an effective facility that are subject to the requirements of this statute may determine how best to achieve and collect the emissions requirements under subsection A, B and C." In essence what they're saying is they rely on the company to make the best business decisions. They do not rely on this legislature regardless of whether it's an individual or committee or a group of people and a midnight amendment suggesting any kind of specific control technology. I think this is a very important thing to take into consideration when we review this bill.

Further on down the line I look at the question of credits. I am very concerned about mixing even the mercury credits with the other credits. I think that we have to be very careful about that. There will also be other people to speak to that issue.

In closing, what I would like to say is that yes, I will support this bill and yes, I will support it and I will agree with it in the long run. However I think we can go further and I think we can compromise and come out with a far better product. We're a teacher right now at writing the final report. I would probably give this report or this term paper a C+. I think quit frankly, this Committee and the legislature can do a whole lot better. I think we can come out with a B+ term paper or B+ report, and I believe that it's up to you all to take this and look at it even further.

And one of the things that concerns me about extending the time line entirely too far out is whether or not we really come into compliance in a reasonable amount of time and whether or not we will come into far greater costs further down the line. If we turn around and allow too far an extension into the future, the costs will be far greater and this gets into, what I consider a very, very important factor, which is an increased cost to the ratepayer. And I think that's something that you have to be very considerate and concerned about. If we allow this in essence to come into production, oh let's say in 2013, the cost of installation over that period of time could be passed off to the rate payers. So I think we have to look at that.

Now, looking at you at this table, essentially three of us, including myself, right now we've probably suffered when it comes to increased rates. Probably two of you will have constituents that will suffer if we don't get mercury and SO₂ emissions reduction sooner. So I think we

₹.! |}

1.

W

have to look at much tighter deadlines. I think you have to say to yourself, it's much better to set a very tight deadline, get into a contractual agreement and a very tight closed manner. And if there are technical problems, allow that agreement to extend a little bit. And I think that's important strictly for the protection of the individuals of the state and your constituents.

One of the things in the Maryland bill that I would have a little focus on, and I'd be glad to leave a copy of the Maryland bill, is it has some good aspects, this is something that I really actually agree with Representative Ross. I think you should focus on essentially putting in a study committee that would basically look at, and I'll read the section in the Maryland bill. It says, "the Department of Environment shall contract with an academic institution in the state for a study of whether there will be adverse impacts on the state economy or the liability of the state's energy supply and the cost of energy for consumers as a result of the state's entry into a continued participation in the regional greenhouse gas initiative." Now they say, of course, among mid-atlantic and northeastern states. I think this is important that you attach a study to this bill so that we keep the whole regional greenhouse initiatives, the costs and the necessity alive. To me that's a very important factor. This is not just a mercury bill. This is an air pollution bill.

With that I thank you. I've tried to condense a fair amount of what I wanted to say and I'd be glad to take any questions.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Representative Phinizy, thank you very much. Any questions? Senator Letourneau.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Representative Phinizy, could you tell me how much mercury is falling on New Hampshire right now, currently? Do you have that ... any idea?

Representative Phinizy: No, I couldn't tell you that. How much actual mercury is falling on New Hampshire? I can tell you that it was estimated out of the Bow/Merrimack plant there were about one hundred and twenty-five pounds.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: But we already heard that.

Representative Phinizy: I understand that.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: I'm wondering how much mercury is coming from the plants in Ohio and Illinois and Michigan?

Representative Phinizy: Well I happen to be ... if I can't ...

.

10

 \mathcal{M}

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: They don't have any trouble zones?

Representative Phinizy: Well I'm not going to speak to that issue. What I'm going to speak to is what's important locally. And I happen to think that mercury does not travel to the degree that the other high flying gases travel. I think that's very important we install mercury scrubbers. I do support that part of the bill that says, "Let's put that technology on now." What I would like you all to do is look very closely to make sure that that technology continues to run throughout the life of it. That it's not shut down in a year or two. I think that's a critically important aspect.

How much mercury is coming from the mid-west? Frankly that's between you and fence post, and that's not important; it's how much mercury we're generating here. That's critically important. Right now, the plant, the Bow Plant generates a phenomenal amount of mercury. And those two plants now reduce their mercury production, which would be the Penacook Plant and the Claremont Plant. They will essentially, in the next few years, be down, I think to fifteen to twenty pounds.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Senator Bragdon.

Senator Peter E. Bragdon, D. 11: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon.

Representative Phinizy: Good afternoon Senator.

Senator Peter E. Bragdon, D. 11: I think I saw something in the bill ... I understand your concern about stretching out the time frame, but I thought I saw something earlier about some economic incentive or incentives for Public Service to do this a little faster, increase credits or such as that. Aren't there incentives in this bill to at least encourage them to move along a little faster if they can?

Representative Phinizy: Well, of course there are incentives to encourage it, but right now, I went on line and I basically did a little bit of an analysis of the company. Right now the company is losing money. Although their annual gross asset, annual gross revenue is something like seven and a half billion dollars. They are at a loss mode. So if you take a company this entire package, because it's not just Public Service of New Hampshire, it's Northeast Utilities, you take it as an entire package, they may make a financial value judgment that says that they may want to put that off because they may find that it may save them money in the long run. So I don't have a lot of faith in what I call

 \mathcal{M}

economic incentives per say, I have a greater faith in a much ... this is why I really like SB 128. Senate Bill 128 said, we'll do "X" in a certain amount of time and you reduce it at least by "Y" amount of pounds of mercury. And if you can't, well then we'll basically go back to the drawing board and see what's achievable. And you see to me, that makes a great deal more sense in giving economic incentives. I just think it ... we don't meddle with business and they don't meddle with us. You know, I get very nervous about giving credits and incentives. Thank you.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Any other questions? If not, thank you very much. And I'll call on Senator Maggie Wood Hassan.

Senator Margaret Wood Hassan, D. 23: Good afternoon.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Good afternoon Senator Hassan.

Senator Margaret Wood Hassan, D. 23: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee for hearing my testimony. Mine is also going to be divvied because I think there are people in this room who can talk about the technical details of this bill far better than I can. But I do want to tell you why I'm here. I'm in support of the bill for two reasons.

One, because I think it represents excellent and hard work by the Science and Technology Committee of the House and it is a solid compromise. And that is one of the things we are in the business of doing here, is listening to each other and moving forward as we can, as we work together and learn to accommodate each other's concerns.

The second reason I'm in favor of this bill, and the thing that I have relied upon in getting me to the point where I support this bill in this hearing today, is the representations by PSNH that they will, in fact, engage in early mercury reduction technology. They have applied for the DOE Grant, they have received the DOE Grant, and I believe they are committed to working with alternative technologies to start reducing mercury sooner, rather than later. That is extraordinarily important to me. One of the things that brings me here is the fact that my Senate District, Senate District 23, and I forgot to say for the record, I'm Maggie Hassan from Senate District 23. (Laughter.) So there we are. Which are Exeter and nine surrounding towns. Is that my district sits in a mercury hot spot. To respond a little bit to Senator Letourneau, I don't doubt that some mercury comes from other places, but I also know that when you look at the maps of hot spots in this state, it is very clear that we are downwind from power plants. And, I hear on a regular basis, as I was just discussing in the Environment Committee, from the folks in my district who I would call and I consider myself one of the mercury moms.

Jour 1

We don't know entirely what mercury does, we do know it is an enormous health concern for our constituents, particularly those who are dealing with the booming epidemic of autism in this state. And I don't know whether there will be evidence to ever suggest that mercury from power plants contributes to autism, we don't know the science yet. We do know that probably children with autism have a genetically disposition to be vulnerable to combinations of chemicals that most of the rest of us tolerate. And with that in mind, I think mercury reduction sooner, rather than later is a health imperative, just the way reducing lead became an health imperative for the generation too before us.

PSNH I think, understands this. I think they have made public representations that they are committed to early mercury reduction. I am concerned that the aggregate reduction that is being measured in this bill may not be monitoring the seacoast power plants quite the way they should be, and I look forward to working with PSN&H on that further, because I think frankly that that's an area of concern for my area of the state. But we made progress by moving forward a step at a time as we are able to, but we can come to an agreement about how this is a very important issue. And I think that this is a terrific step forward. Thank you.

<u>Senator Bob Odell, D. 8</u>: Thank you very much for your testimony. Questions? Senator Letourneau.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: More of a comment. Thank you Senator Hassan for testifying and I agree with you. I hope you didn't mistake what my comments were.

Senator Margaret Wood Hassan, D. 23: No I didn't.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Is that we're doing everything we can here in this state to reduce mercury, but we're not doing ... being much ... as the rest of us.

Senator Margaret Wood Hassan, D. 23: And thank you for your comment. I didn't misinterpret that. I will let you know that as the Representative to the NCSL Environment Committee, I am trying to do my bit for New England when I advocate in those meetings to Ohio and the other mid-west states about cleaning up their mercury.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Other questions? If not, thank you very much. I'll call on Representative Gene Andersen.

14

 \mathcal{W}

Representative Gene Andersen, Grafton/11: I am Representative Gene Andersen and I represent Lebanon. I speak in favor of the bill. However, I do take issue with the time line. I have one, just a quick copy, a black and white of a handout that you were handed out earlier by Chairman Ross.

Please refer to documents submitted by Representative Ross, attached hereto and referred to as Attachment 1.

I'm in construction, and I'll get into that a little bit further. Chairman Ross said that this is a reasonable time line and there are individuals on the Committee, including Mr. Itse and Mr. Chase; Representative Chase who developed this time line. Representative Itse apparently sells process equipment, Representative Chase was a surgeon.

I have thirty-one years in construction working on large scale projects. I am not an engineer, but my title is engineer and I the engineer for the Tobin Bridge in Boston and Ralph Cote's work for seven years. I've worked on a lot of projects. I'm just going to name a few of them because I think they relate directly to the work involved here, and I'm going to also mention the time line and the money because it also relates.

I was a project superintendent for SD Warren Paper Machine, No. 2 (inaudible). It was a \$1.2 billion dollar project which would be over \$2 billion dollars in today's dollars. The project started in 1989. It produced paper in 1990. That is just over one year. Okay? I also was project superintendent, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, \$228 million dollar project; ground breaking 1988, patients October 1991. Casco Cape Bridge, \$130 million dollar project, three year construction, one mile long bridge, second longest base fields span in the world, unique project, three years to traffic. I did work on the MWRA project and I also managed quality control for Cronings for approximately sixty percent of the Cronings in the I-93 tunnel section of the central artery. I have worked on those, as well as numerous other projects.

Now, when I saw this schedule that we have here, it's pretty much unlike any other project that I've ever seen. And so I mentioned it to Committee at that time, my experience with SD Warren Paper Machine because I think that was particularly relevant again. In today's dollars, \$2 billion dollar project completed in almost one year.

So here's what I heard. Permit process takes so long and we can't do anything until the permit process is completed. What DES advises is the permit process could be completed in shorter period of time such as six months. I was advised that we could cut back the time and extensions could be given to PSNH if they went over that time. PSNH was concerned

137 1

for

about the PUC as they said that they'd have to justify these delays by ... I kind of would think that that would be the whole point of the PUC, that they would have to justify those delays. And I have no doubt that if the permitting process was held up, that you and the legislature as well as PUC would fill those extensions.

Another thing I heard, banks won't lend the money until permits are in place so nothing can happen until permits are in place. PSNH is a regulated utility. We're not talking about somebody going out and getting money off the street here. In this bill they have ... the fact is that they're going to get their money back on this. Now, on almost every project of any large scale today it's done from a design build standpoint, including things even like the central artery. The reason for that is that cost of money is so incredibly expensive. So, if you look at this schedule here, you'll see that we've gone ahead ... we're getting the permit ... and I'm ready to start doing scrubber engineering after we get a permit. Obviously on any project that I'm familiar with, engineering goes ahead of almost anything and we're about ready to start the project when we get the permits.

Now, another thing that we heard was that there's a backup due to the demand on these scrubbers. Well actually about a third of the power companies have received these scrubbers between 2000 and 2005. So we're in the process mode right now and the work that is in process now, a lot of it will be completed by 2011 or 2013.

Now you heard Representative Phinizy talk about Maryland earlier. Maryland is going to start requiring scrubbers for technology that will do the work on all of their equipment. So we may in fact be in the lull in engineering and in getting started up on this project when we put this thing out. We may be up against the wall, against many people right now while things are in the process.

Now, it's such a large project that the area would be overwhelmed. This is a very small project, estimated at about \$270 million dollars. I think if you were to look at the City of Boston, which is much bigger than Concord, obviously, however as an MWRA project that was an essential artery and there was also the airport expansion, as well as going ahead and throwing in (inaudible) and all of that time and everything, in a very compressed period of time.

I work for a (inaudible) and Community firm company. Fifty percent of the engineers who worked in Boston five years ago are now gone. That's how these projects should of bulked up. So, it is a very small project. 7.5

37.

Now when I mentioned to Representative Itse that this project with SD Warren cost \$1.2 billion and \$2 billion in today's dollars, he said, "I'm sure that that was probably the only project going on at the time." Now in my experiences in construction, that's where I felt that he was a little unaware of how things work in construction. The way things work in construction is everything happens in an industry all at one time. Okay.

The paper mills were very big at that time. As a matter of fact, at the time the \$1.2 million dollar expansion was going on, major expansion that IP and GA George ... Specific with had a (inaudible) took a seventeen story boiler there, Great Northern was expanding and even James Ruther, the owner at Berlin at that time, had about a \$170 million dollar expansion going on, which would probably be pretty much equivalent to this in today's dollars. Now, the people who do this kind of work are the same kind of people who do those would also work on that project.

Another thing I heard was there would not be enough cranes to do the job. To which I said, "Call Camrino Crane, you could have three hundred of them up here right away." Now I think any of you that worked in ... that saw the central artery project, saw that there were tons of cranes down there; they are all gone, they are all looking for a place to go. Now in fairness to Public Service of New Hampshire I ask their lobbyist, I said, "Cranes?" And the lobbyist said, "I'm not sure where that came from, we probably have a crane from Schiller that we could pull over." Now scrubbers don't require a large crane compared to putting in boilers in the first place. So the cranes is definitely not a problem.

So I think that these are the things you have to think about. Right now this work is in the process. Engineering is out there, this is not a unique engineering system. There are about five engineering firms that do design, about five engineering companies that do building. The paper mills, there's essentially only one company in the America, AHOIT, or you have to go outside. So this is not a difficult construction project.

I think the other thing I'd like to just make one comment on. When you think about these things, remember that we built more battleships in World War II than have been built, since before, or ever since. That's how much construction happens in this country. And that's how fast it moves around. And with that I'll take any questions that I might.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Any questions for the Representative? Seeing none, thank you very much for your testimony. I'll call on Representative Naida Kaen. Good afternoon.

Representative Naida Kaen, Strafford/7: Good afternoon. Thank you Mr. Chairman. For the record my name is Naida Kaen. I represent Lee,



Durham and Madbury, Strafford District 7. To begin with I want you to know that I'm not an engineer.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you.

Representative Kaen: But I've been on the Science, Technology and Energy Committee listening to engineers since 1995. I think what may have been slightly overlooked, and I just want to fill in a few gaps. Chairman Ross did an excellent job of representing what has happened and the deliberations in the Committee and around the table in order to come up with the current bill.

What perhaps has been overlooked is the role through the years that has been played by environmental organizations who force the issue, who publicize the issue for who we need some thanks and I hope you recognize that. On the other hand, I am in full support of this bill, as written. I think now that the parties have come together around the table, and come to a consensus that that role is over with, that we have achieved a consensus at this point and we should expedite. The sooner we do this for the people of the State of New Hampshire, the sooner we will begin those mercury and SO2 reductions. And I simply, I will leave it at that, and if you have any questions, I'm not here to field any technical My role has always been to put the whole thing in questions. perspective.

 $I_{-}^{\prime\prime}$ just ... one further note from a finance perspective. I do have a background in finance and accounting so I would urge you not to even consider extending a new time line. And my logic is this, It would increase the risk. This is a regulated utility; it may increase financing costs to the extent that the utility can claim that their risk is greater because we put additional pressure on them that their costs will go up. And who do the costs flow through to? The rate payers. We have to take that into consideration, that what we have here is a compromise that takes all the factors into consideration.

Thank you. Any questions? If not, thank Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: you very much for being here. I'll call on Representative ... Representative Theberge from Berlin signed in, in favor of the bill but did not wish to speak. I think I've got all the Senators and all the Representatives. I'll call on Alice Chamberlin from the Governor's office.

As you come up Ms. Chamberlin, I will note that Representative Peter Sullivan signed in, in support but did not wish to speak, and he wants the amendment for eighty percent reduction by 2009.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Welcome.

por

Alice Chamberlin, Governor's Office: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee. My name is Alice Chamberlin and I would like to read a letter that is under my signature but on behalf of the Governor.

Please see prepared testimony by Alice Chamberlin on behalf of the Governor's office, dated April 11, 2006, attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #2.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you very much for your testimony.

Alice Chamberlin, Governor's Office: Any questions from the Committee?

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Questions? Seeing none, thank you very much.

Alice Chamberlin, Governor's Office: Thank you, I'll leave copies for the record.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: I'll call on Jared Teutsch from the New Hampshire Lakes Association. Good afternoon.

Mr. Jared A. Teutsch, Environmental Policy Director, New Hampshire Lakes Association: Good afternoon. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee. For the record, my name is Jared Teutsch, Policy Director for New Hampshire Lakes Association. I have another handout here for you as well. It's actually, it says, "Draft copy of a 2006 Section 303(d) Surface Water Quality List" from DES.

Please see prepared testimony of Jared A. Teutsch, Environmental Policy Director, New Hampshire Lakes Association, dated April 11, 2006 and also see submission of the "Draft 2006 Section 303(d) Surface Water Quality List" from NH Department of Environmental Services, attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #3.

The comment period ended March 31st. I'm not sure if it's ... it's no longer considered draft, it may actually be closed, and I'll pass that along as well. I also have a ... the representative for Trout Unlimited could not stay today, so they handed me their testimony, and I'll include that as well on behalf of them.

Please see prepared testimony of Paul A. Doscher, National Leadership Council Representative for NH for the NH Council of

poc

Trout Unlimited, dated April 11, 2006 submitted by Jared A. Teutsch for Mr. Paul A. Doscher attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #4.

On behalf of New Hampshire Lakes Association, which represents over fifteen thousand (15,000) lake enthusiasts, we support this bill as written. Certainly we were a member at the table that supported this bill. We were there with PSNH, with DES, with Audubon, with Forest Society and many others that felt that the compromised approach was the best way to go. And I'll be very brief.

But what I do want to include is, I did highlight it for you in that Section and what it basically says is, "All surface water bodies in the State of New Hampshire are considered impaired." and that's over five thousand plus. That includes lakes and ponds, streams and rivers, all surface water bodies are considered impaired with mercury.

One other thing that I think this bill does very well is the removal of sulfur dioxide. And included in this report, and I don't have the report with me, but I can certainly provide the Committee a copy of the report. It's about one hundred and fourteen (114) pages long and includes all the public waters that are in there. There are waters that are impaired by just PH and obviously sulfur dioxide adds to acid rain deposition, which only adds to the problems with our public water, especially those that are teetering on the brink of acidity. So I do urge you to "ought to pass" this bill as written, and I'd be happy to take any questions.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you very much for your comments, and the letter and the background information. Any questions? Seeing none, thank you very much. I'll call on Joel Harrington, New Hampshire Audubon.

Mr. Joel M. Harrington, Vice President of Policy, Audubon Society of New Hampshire: Mr. Chairman, I have copies of my testimony.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Okay. Good afternoon.

Mr. Harrington: Good afternoon Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee. My name is Joel Harrington. For the record, I'm Vice President of Policy for New Hampshire Audubon Society. As the states oldest New Hampshire based non-profit wildlife organization whose members and supporters include anglers, hunters, birdwatchers, and outdoor enthusiasts, we strongly support House Bill 1673, as written. For ninety-two years we have compiled some of the most extensive data relative to the health of our state's wildlife, including data that contributed to what we know today about levels of mercury in some of

M

New Hampshire's threatened and endangered species. Over the years, Audubon has helped draft the state's Endangered Species Act, the Clean Power Act of 2001, and now we've helped the legislature in drafting the legislation that stands before you.

I'd really like to thank the House Science, Technology and Energy Committee. And I would also like to thank the Senate for last year, for really setting the stage for this bill. If it wasn't for the Senate last year, I honestly believe we would not be here today. It really was the framework for why we are here. This has been a bill that's been two years in creation. It has been embedded through numerous experts, the Public Utilities Commission, the Department of Environmental Services, many environmental groups, experts across the region. This has been embedded for a long, long time. The time is now. We just waited too long. And to study this bill for another year has no benefit at all to the health of this state, and to the children and parents and wildlife that really depend on our state to clean up (inaudible).

I'd like to also thank Carl Johnson for sponsoring last year's legislation and also being willing to be co-sponsor to this year's legislation. I think that's a very important observation to be made for his support on this It represents a hard compromise that will result in significant reductions in mercury and sulfur emissions. For years we've been debating about how best to reduce harmful pollutants in New Hampshire's environment. This year may be our chance with the broad support enlisted on this legislation from both political parties and chambers of the General Court. From the state's two largest angling organizations, from the state's lakes' associations, wildlife organizations, the business organizations, the utility and the state's two conservation resource protection agencies. Ideally Mr. Chairman, no pollution is great for New Hampshire. And if we could feasibly and realistically get to that, I'd be one hundred percent behind it. But we have to be realistic about our approach and some may say ninety percent, some may say eightyfive percent, but we have to be ... we want to support a bill that is achievable and still be part of something and not be a part of something that just sounds good, but is not feasible.

In January, when the Governor made his state-of-the-state address and announced that he would like to see, this year, the legislature pass mercury reductions, there was a standing ovation by all members of the General Court. It was a clear sign, a clear indication of where we're headed in this state on this ... these two major pollutants, mercury and sulfur. This bill has been four months, this particular bill that you have before you, is four months in the making; three days a week, every week. I had no summer vacation and I don't think any stakeholder that was involved in this had a summer. We worked hard on this. And we sent

W

graphs out to multiple parties, and it's not discount station groups, its businesses that are going to be affected heavily by a potential rate increase if there's any risk sharing in this. This is a bill that has the interest and respect of all members of the community.

I want to talk about the percentages. We have to be reminded in this bill, and I'm kind of jumping all over the place and going through it as my thoughts come to, but we have to be reminded that in this bill, to deal with the percentage we felt that there's an unknown as to where this ... what scrubber technology will achieve at Merrimack Station. There are a lot of reasons for that. The PSNH Bow Plant has something called a Cyclone Boiler. It is about ... I'm guesstimating maybe two or three in the country, maybe even less than that, which poses significant issues for this type of technology. And so the percentage that a lot of engineers from their company and that we talked to throughout the region, we think that it will achieve somewhere between eighty and ninety. So the low end number was put in here. However, after 2013, after a consistent rate above eighty percent has been achieved, that rate will be quote, "locked in," as the new compliance rate. It could be eighty-five percent, it could be ninety percent, in fact it may be, I don't, you know, think it will get to be above ninety percent, but it could be ninety-five percent. I mean who knows. But that lock in provision, I think it's a real critical point in this bill and it covers that higher percentage. This bill is more stringent than the federal rule. With all due respect to Representative Phinizy, he's saying EPA, but if you recall the EPA count out of their mercury for the last year got a seventy-five percent reduction by 2018. So I don't see how EPA's rule in any way is a model for what we should be doing here in New Hampshire.

I want to talk ... I'll also go on to the time line. And the time line here, someone said, well, let's look to other states. Other states have done, have an earlier time line so why don't we? Well, I'd like to direct you to my last page of testimony. What I've done is a state-by-state comparison of the six mercury laws in the nation. There's only six. And the point here is to look at caveat in each of these pieces of legislation. Let's take the first two, for example on the last page.

Connecticut – they wanted ninety percent, they have a ninety percent reduction by July 2008. It however, the caveat to that is that if we cannot meet the reduction, then the DEP can establish alternative emissions limits by twenty ten (2010). It's in their discretion now if the utility cannot meet it, then they just put an alternative emissions limit on that for compliance; sixteen seventy three (1673) doesn't have that.

Massachusetts - Everybody talks about Massachusetts. Massachusetts has an eighty-five percent reduction by '08 and a ninety-five percent

M

reduction by 2012. The caveat: the law applies to eight coal-fired boiler units. I talked to the folks in Massachusetts yesterday. Four of these units were already meeting the eighty-five percent before the law was even put into place. And how are they doing it? They are utilizing carbon injection. Well we tried that last year, last year at Merrimack Station and we got less than a twenty percent reduction.

The fifth coal-fired unit, it uses early and off-site reductions. Well we don't have that here. And the sixth through eighth units, which is the infamous Brayton Point Plant has numerous existing controls already in place, a multipronged effort. But the thing is, before that state law was passed, and I don't want to go to long on this, there was years and years of testing, base-line measurements. There's actually a DOE study. There's sampling that took place; we are starting right from the beginning on that under this law.

So I just wanted to point that out and I don't think you have to, the devil is in the details on other states, and we don't have the devil in our details.

Finally, why is sulfur so important to this bill? Well sulfur binds, mercury binds with sulfur. And that's why it's important. It makes it actually a little bit more toxic when it binds. Sulfur is a major contributor to the regional haze, the respiratory illnesses in this state, and if you opened your paper last week, New Hampshire ranked number one in the nation for asthma. And I hear there may be some caveats even to that report. But we definitely rank amongst the highest in the nation for asthma rates. Sulfur causes particulate matter which is the cause to the respiratory illnesses, and nearly every week in the summer I get through my fax machine the air quality report saying, "Poor quality air days in New Hampshire." And that is one of the reasons why we have poor quality areas.

PSNH has built a plant and fortunately they don't like to hear the statistics, ranks thirty-seventh in the country ... out of eleven hundred coal power plants for sulfur emissions. So not by ... by reducing sulfur at PSNH's plant, we are not only reducing a major state source, but we would be reducing a major national source of sulfur emissions. What we finally ... what we need to do is we cannot sit idly and wait for a national solution to an ever growing ecological and health problem. We have a long and we have a successful history of making environmental progress through modest incremental gains. HB 1673 is the next logical step to our future in the air. Members of the Committee, let's not let the perfect become the enemy of the good. Thank you very much.

M

Please see prepared testimony of Joel M. Harrington, J.D., Vice President of Policy, Audubon Society of New Hampshire, dated April 11, 2006. Also see "Mercury and Sulfur Emissions Reduction Bill, HB 1673, Frequently Asked Questions, Mercury and Sulfur Emission Reductions, List of Supporters and Contacts, News Article - Concord Monitor, and NH Sentinel Source.com, The Keene Sentinel, "Mercury 2013," and Mercury and sulfur Emission Reductions, State-by-State Comparison - What Do These Laws Really Say? Attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #5.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you very much for your testimony. Questions? Thank you for the efforts you made in this. I'll call on Mr. Harry Vogel from the Loon Preservation Committee.

Mr. Harry Vogel, Loon Preservation Committee: Good afternoon Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Good afternoon.

Mr. Vogel: Thank you for the opportunity. For the record my name is Harry Vogel. I'm the Executive Director of the Loon Preservation Committee for the Audubon Society of New Hampshire, but I'm a biologist by training and I'd like to talk, very briefly about the effects of mercury on loons and wildlife in New Hampshire.

Over the past twelve years the Loon Preservation Committee, the BioDiversity Research Institute and other members of the Northeast Loon Study Working Group have carried out research to assess the threat that mercury poses to loons and other wildlife in New Hampshire. And that research has turned up the following findings: of one hundred and ninety-seven (197) loon eggs tested in New Hampshire, fifty-two percent (52%) of those have mercury concentrations over .5 parts per million (ppm), which is a level high enough to potentially affect reproductive success in birds. And the highest mercury loading of any loon egg, collected anywhere in the United States was right here in New Hampshire, and that was an egg with 3.9 ppm of mercury in it. And that is three times the lethal limit that has been established in other states.

We've also found that other loons captured in New Hampshire have among the highest concentrations of mercury in loons found anywhere in the United States. Out of one hundred and thirty-five adult loons sampled in New Hampshire, eighteen percent were found to have blood mercury levels about 3 ppm which is the established risk threshold for adult loons. And adults with more than 3 ppm of mercury fledged forty percent fewer young than adults with less than 3 ppm.

pol

Individual loons captured on successive years in other states have constant mercury levels over time, but individual loons captured during successive years in New Hampshire show an average nine point six percent yearly increase in mercury in their blood. So they are accumulating mercury faster than they could rid themselves of it.

Mercury is known to be a potent neurotoxin that affects animal behavior, among other things, and results of our studies and other studies in New Hampshire and in Maine has shown the loons of higher mercury levels have abnormal behaviors that affect their abilities to defend a territory and to raise young.

Mercury can be transported over long distances in the atmosphere, but the majority of mercury deposition in southern New Hampshire is thought to be from local or regional emission sources. And so all of these things together, the concentrations of mercury in loon eggs and in adults, the accumulation of mercury in individual loons over time, and the effects of these mercury levels on breeding, suggest that current levels of mercury emissions are high enough to pose a threat to loons and other wildlife in New Hampshire. And therefore, reduction in mercury from those local sources would reduce the amount of mercury in New Hampshire's environment, something that would benefit loons and other wildlife, and also people. And for those reasons, LPC strongly supports any initiative to reduce mercury emissions from point sources in New Hampshire.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you for your testimony. Any questions? Senator Letourneau.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Just one. The loons are migratory birds aren't they?

Mr. Vogel: Yes they are.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Is there any evidence that they're getting a lot of this from other places?

Mr. Vogel: Yes. In fact there is some evidence. Loons are ... have the advantage of having both feathers and blood. In these feathers, the feathers that we're taking from these birds; when we capture them we'll typically take two feathers. One secondary feather from each wing and we'll test those for mercury. And the mercury content of those feathers is more of an expression of long-term mercury exposure and the mercury that was in the oceans. Because at the time these feathers were formed, they were actually over wintering on the oceans. And the mercury that we find in those feathers is much vulgar than the mercury in the blood,

M

which we take as an expression of the mercury that's been gathered more recently on the breeding grounds. So by having those two samples to compare, we can really say with a fair degree of confidence that most of the mercury that is coming from these loons is actually coming from fresh water lakes that they're on in the summer time.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Where are these birds being captured and tested?

Mr. Vogel: We capture and test loons from all over New Hampshire. Typically ...

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Of the typical birds you're talking about.

Mr. Vogel: Yes. Well, a lot of our loons have been captured from Lake Umbagog, which is in the northern part of the state, but a lot of them have also been captured from the southeastern corner, which has been identified by EPA Atmospheric Deposition Models, as areas where we would expect high mercury depositions. And what we've been able to do, actually the Loon Preservation Committee and the BioDiversity Research Institute, by going out and capturing these loons and sampling the blood, have been able to ground troop that study and validate the results of that study.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Just talking about the hot spots in New Hampshire, and the plants that we're talking about here are down wind and generally in the southern part and to the east part of the state. Would you venture to guess that a lot of this mercury is coming airborne from the west?

Mr. Vogel: Yes. I think prevailing winds, you know, definitely show that there's an effect. There are two things that I could ... I do have a couple of reports with me. One is our "Meeting with the Challenge," which is a thirty year report and on page 13 of that report we actually have a map showing the highest concentrations, and you can clearly see as well that some of the point sources are showing on that and you can see where they'll ... the effect of that plume goes. The other report that I'd like to submit is the "Mercury Connections Report." And in that report there are three different forms of mercury: elementary reactive gaseous mercury and particulate mercury and the transport distances are given from those. And for the last two, the reactive gaseous and the particulate mercury transport distances are estimated from zero to thirty-three, three hundred kilometers and from zero to five hundred kilometers, respectively. So, that certainly suggests that a lot of this

mercury that we're finding in these biological hot spots is coming from the over sources.

Please see prepared testimony of Harry Vogel, Executive Director, Loon Preservation Committee of the Audubon Society of New Hampshire. Also, "Meeting the Challenge," and "Mercury Connections," reports attached hereto and referred to as Attachments #6, #7, and #8, respectively.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Just one last question. Are you pursuing federal legislation at all to try and get these plants cleaned up from the west of us? Because New Hampshire is contributing its part and it's spending a lot of money and paying high electric rates because of it and we're willing to do that, but we're still going to see this contamination coming over even after we do all this.

Mr. Vogel: Yes. Well, I'm a simple biologist, sir, and so I'm not pursuing any legislation in other parts. But certainly the work that the Loon Preservation Committee and other folks have done clearly shows a link between these local sources and these pollutants in these hot spots. So that to me suggests that if we clean up these local sources, these hot spots will over time dissipate, and in fact we are beginning to see, we have seen some evidence that loons downwind of some of these point sources, once these point sources have been either checked out or the mercury's reduced, we've seen a fairly quick reduction in the amount of mercury in loon blood in some cases as well, which is very encouraging.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you.

Mr. Vogel: You're welcome.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you very much for being here today.

Mr. Vogel: You're welcome.

Service of New Hampshire.

And I'll call on Donna Gamache, Public

<u>Donna Gamache, Public Service of New Hampshire</u>: If I may, I have Terry Large with me. He's with PSNH ...

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Sure

Ms. Gamache: To potentially answer any technical questions.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Good afternoon.



Mr. Terry Large, Public Service of New Hampshire: Thank you.

Ms. Gamache: Senator, thank you. I am Donna Gamache representing PSNH and Terry Large with PSNH as well. When you first started the hearing you asked that our testimony be kept to what nobody else had said, so I'm trying to find something to say. So, what I thought I would do is make it very brief and hopefully Terry will add a few comments, and then just leave it open for questions. But the one thing that nobody else brought to your attention was that when we started to sit down as a group, and it was a large extended group, trying to find a solution to removing mercury from the environment, we had to do a couple of things. And that was lay the ground work for how we were going to move forward. The first was that we had to recognize that we're all New Hampshire residents and we're solidly invested in the well being of the State of New Hampshire, environmentally, as well as New Hampshire's health.

We also knew that what we had heard in the discussion on SB 128, that there were certain things that diverse interests in the community did not want. They wanted, for one example, no trading of mercury for compliance. They wanted no mitigation in order to meet the limits. That, you know, all the reductions would take place at the stack. We also knew that they wanted as **much** reductions as possible and as **soon** as possible. We feel that HB 1673 really addresses all of those needs in a very good way. So therefore we do support HB 1673 in its current form. We feel this language is realistic in terms of our ability to meet requirements, it's flexible in the way it aims to keep customers' costs lower, and it's significant in terms of setting emissions reductions limits at what the technology actually achieves on a sustained basis.

But the other point that I wanted to raise was that HB 1673 is really Phase II of the Clean Power Act. And, if you go back and take a look at the principles in the Clean Power Act, it really was meant to be a multipollutant approach. And the reason for that was they recognized that there would be, it would be beneficial to customers to try to find technology that could get more than one pollutant reduced and it would also be very beneficial to customers, in terms of costs. And we are very supportive of the final piece of legislation because we feel that it's in keeping with principles, yet up to date with what the needs are of today.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you.

Mr. Terry Large, Public Service of New Hampshire: Thank you Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee. I'm just sitting here and have three bullets that maybe will try to summarize what we see in trying to

Suc

(inaudible) this bill. This bill as written, produces the maximum amount of mercury reductions for the most reasonable cost. This bill brings about reductions in mercury as soon as next year, and for years into the future, culminating with the installation of the scrubber technology that not only gets mercury, but SO2 sulfur dioxide as you've heard. This bill's going to advance the science of mercury removal. We spoke about the DOE grant. Work that with which is already under way and would be implemented this coming and next year and the years into the future so that the science and the technology and the understanding about how to get mercury out of the power plant stacks will be advanced, so that maybe our friends to the west can learn and will follow our lead and reduce emissions of mercury into this state, no matter how much or how little it is. We reduce (inaudible) written services the best interests of the environment of the State of New Hampshire and customers of Public Service Company of New Hampshire. We urge you to vote it "ought to pass."

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you very much. Thanks to both of you. Senator Burling.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: I wanted to ask two questions. What you heard because you were both here through the course of the preceding, two people speak about their view of the relationship between the State and PSNH as a result of this bill. Representative Phinizy talked about this is a five year contract; once you do this nothing ever changes. Is that your view of what we're doing here? Is this a kind of last telephone call between the State and PSNH before we get to 2013?

Ms. Gamache: I'll let Terry follow up to me if he wants to give something more technical. Absolutely not, PSNH has, you don't have to take my word for it, we have history. You can see it out there. We have a history of working with the state continually. We have a very good relationship with DES, we work with them continuously. We work with you, the legislature continuously, and we supported fully the amendment that the Committee, Science and Technology and Energy Committee added to the bill, which required a yearly review by the Electricity Restructuring Oversight Committee beginning one year from its limitation of the law. We fully support it. We have been, PSNH has been, we're just a little over an eighty year old company. We've always been in New Hampshire, we expect to continue to be and we have no reason to walk away at any time.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: And, if I may, a follow up?

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Yes.

M

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: Referring to Senator Hassan, I think you could call it a credo, she expressed her belief in the things that your company was prepared to do. But I'd like to hear from you, for the record of this Committee if there are improvements you can make in a faster time frame, if there are reductions you can make sooner. If there are things you can do to get mercury out of our air quicker, will you do them?

Ms. Gamache: Absolutely.

Mr. Large: Absolutely, Senator. This bill incents that behavior and we've demonstrated with the (inaudible) type legislation in the past associated with NO_x removal and other technologies that we will use as promptly as we possibly can to get scrubbers in service.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you. Any other questions? If not, thank you very much. Oh, sorry.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: So, just a follow up with Senator Burling's question. This is a realistic time frame?

Mr. Large: Yes it is.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: For this bill?

Mr. Large: For this legislation it is, yes.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: But if there's a possibility that you could move it up, you would?

Mr. Large: We will begin with the passage of this legislation and follow the steps to engineer, design, permit, finance, and construct this as we can.

Ms. Gamache: If I could just add as a response to your question, and I can't quite remember where it is in the bill, but there is a provision in this language that within the first year we have to have a certain amount of permitting already in the process, and we've committed to doing so, so we will get started immediately.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: We had a Representative, just a follow up, sorry sir ... Representative come in and say that he's been an engineer on many jobs that are much larger construction jobs and that they were able to do so in a shorter time span. What takes so many years to do this? So the Committee understands.

Sor.

Mr. Large: I would start by saying that there's a balance between time and money. Things can be done faster at substantially higher cost. If you've had familiarity with the Merrimack Station facility, the site, this is a monumental project in terms of that site. There will be multiple cranes. There will be lots of construction activity. They will remove essentially all of the remaining property that sits aside the existing boilers today, along side all the other pollution control equipment that's been added in the last ten years. Two hundred and fifty million dollars is an awful lot of money in PSNH's view. So, if more money were to be spent, could it be done more promptly? Possibly, but to be done well so that the plant can be operated and the maximum benefit from this technology can be derived, it would be best to take a prudent and low fall out approach, as opposed to trying to throw more money or throw more people and solve the issue. Doing it in an organized well thought out and planning for the long-term operation of this unit is the right way to go for everyone involved we believe.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: And just one last question. What is the overall cost of the rate payers on this?

Ms. Gamache: I ... Bob Scott from DES has some charts that he was going to pass out.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Oh, that's going to be further testimony later on? That ... I can hold off on that.

Ms. Gamache: Okay.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Any other questions? If not, thank you both for being here. Appreciate your testimony.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: Mr. Chairman, I have a brief, I'm supposed to be in two places at once and it's across the street. I'll be right back.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: All right.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: I assume we have quite a few people left to do at this point.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: We are half way down the first sheet.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: Excellent.

<u>Senator Bob Odell, D. 8</u>: When we get to a point where we have some that aren't speaking then ... so we've got ...

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: I don't want to miss out on a single thing. I'll be back.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: How long do you think Senator Burling you'll be gone? (Laughter).

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: Literally five minutes. I'll be right back

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: All right. Then I'm going to call on Sally Davis, League of Women Voters New Hampshire. Good afternoon.

Sally Davis, League of Women Voters New Hampshire: Good afternoon. As you'll see at the end, I signed Jane Armstrong's signature with my initials after it because she couldn't get to my house to sign.

My name is Sally Davis. I am a past President of League of Women Voters and follow legislation here in Concord fairly frequently. I've been a member of the League of Women Voters since 1966 in several states and was a part of the original study on air quality back in the '70's, and feel pretty (inaudible) with what we have studied and worked on through the years. So this is to the New Hampshire Senate Energy and Economic Development Committee regarding HB 1673.

Please see prepared testimony of Jane Armstrong, President, League of Women Voters of New Hampshire, dated April 11, 2006, submitted and read to Committee by Sally Davis attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #9.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you Ms. Davis. Any questions? Seeing none, thank you very much. And I'll call on Bob Scott, Department of Environmental Services.

Mr. Bob Scott, Air Resources Division, Department of Environmental Services: Mr. Chairman.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Good afternoon Mr. Scott.

Mr. Scott: Good afternoon. I will attempt to be brief. Obviously the main points have already been raised and I do not like to be repetitious. First of all, I'll hand out our testimony letter and also, if it helps the Committee, a really, a one pager kind of outlining the major points of the bill.

Please see prepared testimony of Mr. Michael P. Nolin, Commissioner, the Department of Environmental Services, submitted by Mr. Bob Scott and also an "Overview of HB 1673," attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #10.

Well, at least for me that works better. And finally, since it came up in recent conversation, potential financial impacts to the ratepayers. Much of what I was going to say again has been covered, so I'll try not to be repetitious. I do want to make the point that this is not a new thing for DES; we've been working on this for well over two years. We originally ... we had the Clean Power Act which required the DES to make a recommendation to the legislature, which we did two years ago, and we've been working on this issue every since. And why I say that is I want to ... it's been said that this bill certainly is a compromise, we've vented this issue through many, many resources. I'm very fortunate to have some very good engineers and scientists at the Department, and frankly I have available to me through other venues, other state agencies from other states, so we would avail ourselves to their knowledge also.

So having said that perhaps I could address more directly some of the concerns raised, so at least you know as we debated this issue and came ... this ... what you see in the bill, how we got there, perhaps that would help you a little bit. On the time frame, can it be done sooner? I want to point out, and PSNH alluded to it, but I want to drive it home a little bit more, that plant as it is, Merrimack II, which again the control to be required from Merrimack I and II. But Merrimack II, the largest plant was built in 1968. It now has two ESP's on it which are Electrostatic Precipitators for DL control and its NOx controls. In order to add yet another layer of control, what we're talking about if you've been to the plant, is putting a brand new stack in, reinforcing the boiler, redesigning certain parts, moving the control equipment; we're not talking just about taking this box here and adding this box. We're talking very major installation changes to the facility, perhaps even depending on the water discharge if there's an issue there of maybe even a cooling tower. These are all very significant. So I'm not here to say that you won't see something before 2013, what I do want to make sure is that this is not an easy thing for the existing plant. In many ways it's easier with a new plant than an existing plant.

And having said that, I have a lot of faith in PSNH and frankly I hope to see something installed sooner. In discussing this bill we planned incentives to give PSNH a reason to do it as soon as possible. It works out financially best for them the sooner they do this. I think that's an important point.

Percentage, we heard some people talk about ... they said the eighty percent and again I'll caveat, the eighty percent is not at that particular plant. The eighty percent is at, of all their coal units, there is three at Schiller also on the seacoast. Those controls they put on Merrimack need to meet the eighty percent for all of that, where I believe that we'll see a higher rate most likely. Can I guarantee you'll see a higher rate? Absolutely not. Again, this is a unique plant. So with that in mind, again we built in incentives to make the company want to do the best they can to get the highest rates possible. And again as it's been mentioned, once the scrubber technology is installed, and I will say scrubber technology is not something you dial up and dial down it's ... you get your reductions. There may be some minor tweaks that can be made to optimize it. For the most part, once that's installed and that is the best technology available today, once that's installed we will get what we get out of it to make it very simple. What we put in the bill is, "Gee, if we get ninety-two point seven percent" or whatever it is, we can lock that in and so we don't need anything on the table environmentally. But we've also provided again, economic incentives to provide the company a reason to try to do the best that they can.

It's also been raised, why are we being prescriptive? Why are we in this regular ... in this law to PSNH to put in a scrubber? And I have to take some personal responsibility for that; I advocated for that myself. Why would I do that? Everybody, including myself I think agrees that we want to see mercury reductions, a high level of mercury reductions sooner than later. We know today that the installation of scrubbers which have a wonderful benefit of SO2 reductions, also reduce mercury at a high percentage. That is today the best technology, especially taking in to account the multi-pollutant benefits that we know of. What we wanted to avoid is extra time being given, another year, two years of a selection process, what's the best technology, the owner's having to go to PUC to convince them that this is the best technology, and then perhaps having some other company come in and say, "Well, I had this new alchemy and I can do something even better." That's all fine and dandy, but what we're concerned about is we don't want to have this as a method where we're constantly delaying the installation. By calling out scrubber technology in the bill, we're signaling PSNH from the word go to start to engineer, design and build scrubber technology right away. The bill has in it, within one year of passage of the bill, they are required to have all their applications in to us, which means there's a lot of engineering work they have to do. This is starting ... this is in the ground writing for the plan, and this is why we did that.

Costs to the ratepayer, again this needs to be looked at in the context of the existing New Hampshire law which puts a fairly stringent requirement on the utility for SO₂, again by having to buy SO₂ credits.

This is the same law under 125:0 that is being amended should this bill pass. What this does is because of that existing requirement, again it's been mentioned PSNH and again I'll mention it, 2007, when that kicks in, they are required to buy, since they won't have the scrubber's installed yet, roughly over twenty million dollars worth of SO₂ credits to comply with our state law, not the federal law. With that in place, that makes installation of scrubber's very economical such that as you look at the chart, ultimately it ends up being a cost savings to the ratepayer because the facility no longer has to buy as many of these credits to meet the current state law.

Please see "Mercury Compliance Cost – Annual Rate Impacts," submitted by Mr. Bob Scott, Air Resources Division, Department of Environmental Services, attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #11.

And finally Senator Letourneau is not here, so I won't go on to much. Yes the state is very involved in legal action regarding mercury from other places and cleaner mercury rule as many of you know that we're suing the federal government, frankly over, so that that is our attempt to make sure, not only are we doing the right thing in the state, but to make sure we are not receiving mercury, unnecessarily from outside.

And as a final note I will add this is a problem, again for Senator Letourneau who is not here, the "hot spot" issue. Yes we're getting mercury pollution from outside sources, very definitely. But we're also because of the NOx technology that would be required beyond these units; it had the impact of oxidizing the mercury that does come out of the stack. Because of that, that exacerbates the local problem. And as I said before, I call out that no good deed goes unpunished. PSNH was doing the right thing to do that, but now we've had ... they have unintended consequences. This is a way to fix that consequence also. With that I'll gladly take any questions.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Questions for Bob Scott? You are the top air quality person in the State of New Hampshire in the state government.

Mr. Scott: I was a director there for Resource Community Health. (Laughter).

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: I've heard some ... we've had some comments made today that we're falling behind the state, other states and we're not up to quality and I, and yet from the consensus statements people have made, in particularly the chart that Mr. Harrington gave, I would think that this is, we're the seventh state in the country to do this, that this is

pretty progressive. I mean this is stepping up and building a consensus that hopefully will get a strong vote here in the Senate?

Mr. Scott: I argue that characterization. And I, and again I'll remind everybody that we'll look at what other states are doing and it's so progressive, they're requiring, for the most part, the installation of scrubbers. That's what we're requiring.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you very much. Appreciate it.

Mr. Scott: Thank you.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Appreciate your efforts.

Mr. Scott: In final, I do want to say how pleased I am to be able to talk on this bill.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Good. Thank you.

Mr. Scott: Thank you.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: I'll call on Catherine Corkery from New Hampshire Sierra Club.

Ms. Catherine Corkery, New Hampshire Sierra Club: Sir, if I could switch places with Georgia Murray from AMC?

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Okay.

Ms. Corkery: She's got a lot further ride home than I do. (Laughter).

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: All right. So then do you want to speak after?

Ms. Corkery: Or wherever she was, or whatever you'd prefer.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: All right. Consider yourself switched.

Ms. Corkery: Thank you. I appreciate that.

Ms. Georgia Murray, Appalachian Mountain Club (AMC): Okay, I have a handout. For the record, I'm Georgia Murray. I'm the Appalachian Mountain Club's Air Qualities Staff Scientist and I appreciate this opportunity to speak here at this hearing.



Please see prepared testimony of Ms. Georgia Murray, AMC Staff Scientist, attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #12.

The AMC recognizes the long hours and hard work put into the development of this bill, HB 1673. We appreciate the ultimate goal, a scrubber on Merrimack's Station that will reduce both mercury and sulfur dioxide emissions. We really like some of the things that Bob Scott just spoke about that again, reduces mercury and SO₂, that does not allow the sale of mercury credits as mercury credits and that it locks in that mercury reduction level obtained by the scrubber. We think these are all good pieces to this bill.

However, we're here to ask you to consider whether this bill is as good as it gets. Or does it short change New Hampshire ratepayers and the environment. And we urge you not to let this opportunity pass to make this process worth while to insure that for all the work that was put in that we got the best package that we could possibly get out of this process.

You know, I expected to hear that this bill, as is, does not need to be fixed and provide certainty for success. AMC believes the bar is set too low though in this bill and believes with incremental improvements, at the end of the day we can all say we did our best if we just improve it slightly. So I'm here today to ask you to improve HB 1673 while retaining workable economic incentives and flexibility for compliance.

I ask if moving the time line by one year as I propose, and I have a one pager as well on those changes, would make for a catastrophic uncertainty and not weigh to success. We know that it would, with certainty, save the ratepayer around twenty-six million dollars a year. The earlier this goes in, that's an annual savings of about twenty-six million dollars through that avoided SO₂ allowance cost need. Many organizations in the state do believe that this kind of retrofit can be done faster than is currently proposed, and a host of other states, I do think, believe that it can be done faster as well. And furthermore, AMC and its members would do what's within our power to expedite the public permit process for Merrimack Station. Certainly that is one area that PSNH identified as something that could be helped along is that public permit access. And we would help the process to expedite that.

I also ... as for increasing the target of eighty percent reduction to eighty-five percent lead to failure? Again, there's been a report out by EPA that says that ninety percent mercury reduction is achievable, especially with the type of control technology configuration that we're talking about at Merrimack Station. The fact that it has an ESP at ... the fact that it has

an SCR, like Bob Scott said, in fact it does, the SCR, the NO_X rule does lead to a more oxidized form of mercury; well that actually helps the scrubber. The scrubber likes ... can actually be more efficient if what's coming through it is a more oxidized form.

You know, I do have to make one clarification related to this eighty percent reduction, and Joel Harrington mentioned that there's ... the devil is in the details of these other state bills. I ask you to look how this eighty percent is calculated. The way this bill is structured it's an eighty percent reduction from the coal input numbers going into this plant. If they did nothing today, they're half way there. They could do nothing and because of ESP that's already there. And I think that that's actually a good thing to reward PSNH for the hard work that they've already done with the ESP that they have installed and the other controlled technologies that they have in place, they should be rewarded for those efforts that they've done in the past. If no scrubber went on today, they'd be half way to the eight percent because it's based on a coal input It's not based on ... the early mercury credit reduction component is based on reduction at the stack. But when we're talking about eighty percent we're talking about looking at coal input numbers and than an eighty percent reduction from that. That means what they're getting currently with the ESP already counts towards that eighty percent.

The AMC proposal retains the flexibility of early mercury reduction banking which the source can than use towards meeting the eighty-five percent that we propose. So we're not saying, you know, we agree that they need some flexibility, they need to be able to use banking to potentially meet that to provide them some more certainty. The AMC proposal looks to offset the cost of the wet scrubber through a simple expansion of the current incentives under the existing RSA 125:O passed by this Senate. We agree with others that we need economic incentives to make this bill work, to bring Merrimack Station into compliance with the sulfur reduction goals of the 2001 New Hampshire Clean Power Act. However, we're very concerned that the current incentives set a very poor precedent. If other states adopted any flavor of what is proposed in HB 1673 related to the incentives, which is exchanging unrelated pollution credits, New Hampshire would suffer because we are downwind of many sources. So even if a state were to do that within that state's boundaries, not even participate in the federal market, if they decided to do this trading of different credits we would suffer from that because we are downwind of a lot of upwind pollution sources.

In addition, the approach amounts to a problematic creative accounting for the years when PSNH has met its federal cap allotment through existing incentives. Currently their existing incentives on the books, as . PJ**

pol

soon as that scrubber goes in they are going to get some mercury, excuse me. some SO2 credits for that reduction which is currently on the books. That's great. But they're limited by the federal cap up to twenty thousand. That's as much as they can get in one year. What they've done is basically an inappropriate way to accumulate this credit currency during these years they've maxed out and just calling it another name. They're calling it a mercury credit because they can't call it a SO₂ credit in that year. Okay? Furthermore, the mercury to sulfur transfer significantly undermines the current state sulfur cap weakening state law. I would agree with one of the previous speakers. Instead of this path of weakening and poor precedent, we offer a simple extension of current incentives. Okay? Which reward on-site sulfur reductions with sulfur credits. Okay? The current on the books incentives work towards when that scrubber goes in and they get major reductions than they're going to get some sulfur credits for that on-site activity. Because, you know, they could choose with the new sulfur cap of seventy-two hundred to just buy their way, if that was economically feasible, down to that cap level; or they can choose to control what the previous Clean Power Act did which was to try to incentivize that on-site reduction, which is a good thing. Let's expand that, it's going to work.

AMC recognizes that PSNH has stepped up to try mercury control technology before the compliance date by obtaining Department of Energy funding, and we urge you to maintain the level of mercury captured achieved through this technology until the scrubber is installed.

I've also included some handouts within my package. It's basically the one pager and two handouts I'd like to go over with you briefly.

Please see handouts submitted by Ms. Georgia Murray, AMC Staff Scientist, "Proposed Changes to HB 1673," "PSNH Merrimack Station," and "Estimated Annual SO₂ Allowances Needed by PSNH," attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #13.

I tried to estimate the cost to ratepayers from the capital costs of this scrubber going in, using the capital costs numbers provided in HB 1673, and then adjusting that capital cost, total monthly cost to average ratepayers down after accounting for the annual allowance savings due to the scrubber installation. What we're talking about is that twenty-six million dollars a year. As soon as that scrubber goes in, that's the savings. So you're adjusting down from about four dollars a month cost to ratepayers due to compliance to a dollar forty-four. Then, if you include the actual on the books bonus allowances, we're down to sixty-seven cents a month, on average, to ratepayers. And that's spread out over a ten year window. If you look at the incentive currently in HB

1673, this mercury to SO₂ incentive you could get back down a little further to forty-two cents. Now we're only going to cost forty-two cents a month for the ratepayer for compliance with this program.

My program looks to replace that value. It looks to expand those incentives; it also looks to incentivize earlier installation of that scrubber, and it's an equivalent level by incentivizing that. So the second piece is the graph. This is really a great way to see how the current envelope incentives work. In 2006, here we are before the Clean Power Act new cap goes in. This is my estimate of how much, how many SO₂ allowances they're going to need. And you can multiply this number by about a thousand dollars to get the actual total annual cost. When the 2007 cap goes into effect, that number is going to jump way up because now they're under a tighter cap, they need more SO₂ allowances to comply with the new law.

Well soon after that, in 2008 and further out, the current on the books SO₂ incentives start buffering that cost. So all I'm talking about is taking those current incentives and expanding those to the same level of what the incentives in HB 1673, the same level value of what's currently in this bill.

This graph also shows ... the different lines are showing different compliance dates basically, under my proposal and under HB 1673 as currently proposed. And basically I want you to focus on the cost, or basically the need, the numbers and the need, and again, just multiply that through by one thousand for simplicity. I checked this morning and actually SO₂ allowance costs were around nine hundred dollars.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Yeah. I think you've over gone your time, so let's move it right along.

Ms. Murray: Okay. So, the earlier we reduce the need for these SO₂ allowances, in other words, the earlier this is installed, the huge difference to ratepayer is that difference in cost from that avoided SO₂ allowance needs. So the earlier we can get this on, the better for the ratepayer, the better for PSNH as well because now they do not have to go out and get these SO₂ allowances.

So, in closing I would like to say I'm not asking for perfect. I'm not asking for another year's study. I'm asking for incremental improvements to get the most out of this process for New Hampshire citizens.

Thank you for your time.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you for your testimony. Any questions? Seeing none, thank you very much.

Senator Robert K. Boyce, D. 4: Mr. Chairman, in the future when someone asks to be bumped ahead of the rest to facilitate their own schedule in getting home, maybe they ought to consider the time of the people that are behind them. Thank you.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you for your comments. I will say that the Committee is going to vote on this bill tonight and that we do not have the option of not voting on it tonight. This is our deadline day to day. So we will be here for the duration and we will get through this. So, with that, I'm going to step out for a second and Vice Chairman Letourneau is going to, he didn't know it, but he's going to take over.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Don McGinley.

Mr. Don J. McGinley, Legislative Representative, New Hampshire Wildlife Federation: Thank you Mr. Chairman.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: You're welcome.

Mr. McGinley: Good afternoon.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: I know you've waited a long time.

Mr. McGinley: I apologize, Senator, for all the misspellings I've made of your name, as well.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: You're not alone.

Mr. McGinley: Good afternoon. Maybe I guess good evening Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee. For the record, my name is Don McGinley. I'm a citizen of New Hampshire. I reside in the town of New Boston.

I'm here representing the New Hampshire Wildlife Federation (NHWF) as a non-paid member of their Board of Directors. We represent over ten thousand sportsmen through a combination of individual memberships and over forty-five affiliated sporting clubs. We care dearly about the environment; we don't just care about fish and birds, although they're very important.

Please see prepared testimony of Mr. Donald J. McGinley, Legislative Representative, New Hampshire Wildlife Federation, attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #14. Me V

pol

I want to first emphasize that I have no expertise in power generation technology, nor the details of mercury and sulpher dioxide pollution. At the same time, I worked for over thirty years in the very competitive computer and internet working industry where overly conservative schedules were never tolerated, yet high quality product was always required and usually delivered. I see no reason why PSNH should not strive in the same manner to reduce pollution to our citizens of New Hampshire, the ratepayers who will bear the costs resulting from this bill in any case.

While the New Hampshire Wildlife Federation agrees with most of HB 1673's content, we seriously question the following three items, and I'll be very quick.

- 1. The summer of 2005 carbon injection mercury test results were to be published prior to year-end as part of the "retained" SB 128 commitment by PSNH and by the legislature. New Hampshire Wildlife Federation has yet to see any publication of results, good, bad or indifferent. I think the truth should be told to the ratepayers and public in New Hampshire. As part of your review, we ask that a public explanation be made as to what occurred with testing of the subject technology that is no longer considered within HB 1673.
- The 2013 date for scrubber installation is too conservative. We know the Clean Power Coalition has presented strong arguments in favor of a 2011 date. We understand, as you've just heard, the Appalachian Mountain Club which we hold in high regard for their technical capabilities, believes that 2013 is far too conservative. The EPA reports show that scrubber installs not unlike the Bow Power Station can be accomplished in forty months, three and a half years with their permitting process requiring less than an extra year. We think it unwise that 2013 be your accepted date when our environment and population is under such an extreme mercury and sulfur dioxide attack. If the states of Pennsylvania and Georgia, and Maryland, as Representative Phinizy described, have commitments to cut mercury by 2010, why is New Hampshire requiring three extra As such, the New Hampshire Wildlife Federation recommends that you seriously consider improving upon the 2013 date, at least to mid 2011, that's five full years, hence.
- 3. The New Hampshire Wildlife Federation disagrees with any use of mercury conversion to sulfur dioxide allowances as specified in this bill. We suggest you eliminate the "mercury conversation to

sulfur dioxide allowance incentive." We agree with AMC's assessment that "inter-pollutant trading is a bad precedent for New Hampshire to set," and we believe New Hampshire's citizens would say exactly the same thing.

We urge the Committee to report HB 1673-FN as "Ought to Pass" only after addressing these issues.

Thank you very much for your attention and my ability to testify today.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Questions from the Committee? Seeing none, thank you.

Mr. McGinley: Thank you very much.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5; Mr. Chairman, I do have one question.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Oh you do?

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: One very brief question. To the extent that we have seen a group of citizens basically vote themselves for almost a year to the search for a compromise, which might get a bill that would move forward, do you think that we as Senators have any obligation to give power to that compromise when it's finally reached?

Mr. McGinley: I'm probably not a very good person to answer that question. All I really want to say today, very clearly is that I believe you have the power to improve upon the date 2013 as a reasonable date. Okay? Include a more reasonable date in that legislation.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: And would you believe me if I said that if I don't, it is because I have real worry that changing the compromise may cause the whole thing to crumble and disappear?

Mr. McGinley: I believe that if a little bit more time is required, in terms of a little bit more time, I mean maybe a month. Legislature is in session until the end of May. I believe that time should be taken by this Committee and by the legislature.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Let me just point out, because I was going to mention this a little later on. The reason this building has worked for two hundred years is because we have very strict rules of operation and there is a bunch of ... many deadlines that come along. And, the deadline for us is that we receive this bill from the House on what's called "cross-over" day deadline ...

Σ¥.

Mr. McGinley: Yes.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: And we didn't have very much time to deal with it. We also respected the work that had been done in the House. Or at least I, as the Chairman, I can say that.

Mr. McGinley: As do I.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: And so when it comes to us, for us to open this up because there are people that either overtly or covertly would like to see this thing go away in it's entirety. That if that's the risk that some would like us to take, that's a risk I'm not willing to take. And that's why the idea of having this around for another month, number one it's got a fiscal note on it, this will go to the Finance Committee after it passes the floor of the House, if it does that. I mean, Senate, if it does that. So there are other steps in the process and we will be here for another month, but this is one of the issues that we have to face because of deadlines. We play to those deadlines. We do the best we can, but I must caution that there are people who would prefer to see this go away entirely.

Mr. McGinley: I understand that. And I'm certainly not one of those people and the New Hampshire Wildlife Federation is not an organization that wants that to happen. However, I do ... New Hampshire Wildlife Federation would like to see some level of improvement or incentive to improve, over and above what's in the context of the bill today. That change would be a very simple amendment to the bill.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: You mentioned the word "incentive." And you heard me because you were in the wrong choir of PSNH whether they were willing to fulfill the promises that they've made to other Senators. Are you telling me you discredit what they've said they will do?

Mr. McGinley: Absolutely not, but what I heard very clearly today is that one has been put on the table and one is included in 1673 is reasonable, and is reasonable, and is reasonable. I take that and I saw a thread through the bill of being rather conservative. I hate to be conservative when it comes to pollution that these toxins are causing for our citizens.

I think maybe if we were sitting here a year ago with this same bill, and a date of 2012 versus 2013 was put on the table, most of the organizations that fail to support this bill would be high against 2012. I would invite the Committee to put a date of 2012 in simply one year in advance of what that very reasonable and conservative goal is stated in the bill.

pol

" pol

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Okay. Any more questions? Seeing none, thank you very much.

Mr. McGinley: Thank you very much.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: I'll call on Mr. Stephen Perry, New Hampshire Fish and Game Department.

Mr. Stephen Perry, New Hampshire Fish and Game Department: Thank you Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Good evening.

Mr. Perry: I'll be very brief. For the record my name is Stephen Perry. I serve as Chief of Inland Fisheries Division from New Hampshire Fish and Game Department. The New Hampshire Fish and Game Department supports HB 1673 because mercury in the environment poses human health risks and it bio-accumulates in fish and wildlife resulting in sublethal and lethal effects.

Please see prepared testimony of Mr. Stephen Perry, New Hampshire Fish and Game Department attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #15.

With that I'll end my testimony and take any questions.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you very much for your testimony. Any questions? Seeing none, thank you very much for being here. I'll call on Richard Smith, New Hampshire Bass Federation.

Mr. Richard D. Smith, New Hampshire Bass Federation: I'm going to be mercifully brief. (Laughter).

<u>Senator Bob Odell, D. 8</u>: You'd be eternally (laughter) (inaudible). Come back often. (Laughter).

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Staying longer, say less.

Mr. Smith: For the record though I do have to say my name is Richard Smith, citizen of New Hampshire. I live in the village of Hancock. I'm here representing New Hampshire Bass Federation. I'm here as a non-paid director of conservation.

I'm here because our favorite fish is very much involved. (Laughter). We're often at the top of the food chain.

Nobody disputes that we need to do something, and we're counting on your wisdom, all you Senators. We ... as much as we respect that wisdom, we realize that you can't be scientists and engineers in a very short period of time. I appreciate the fact that this is really been thoroughly (inaudible) over two years. With a lot of expert testimony of engineers, scientists, the whole works, we feel this bill as written is reasonable. And we like the fact that there are, in fact incentives here to start the process which I think is valid.

So, we just want to be on record and let you know that. I end with a little quote from Chief Seattle, it's attributed to Chief Seattle and that is that, "You did not weave the web of life, we're merely a strand. And whatever we do to the web, we do to ourselves."

Thank you very much.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you very much. Any questions other than the best fishing questions? (Laughter). Senator Letourneau has an interest in that!

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Just a comment. Your favorite fish, but you don't eat them.

Mr. Smith: No we don't. We pretty much catch and release the best fishing community. However, we feel a family should be able to come to New Hampshire, vacation, catch fish and enjoy a meal without having to worry about it. We'd love to see the day when we no longer have fish consumption advisories to the great State of New Hampshire.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you very much.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you very much.

Mr. Smith: You're welcome.

Please see prepared testimony of Mr. Richard Smith, New Hampshire Bass Federation attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #16.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: I'll ... this is going to be a little risky for me, but I'm going to say that "Dorsaka Porrins" from Concord has signed in, in favor of the bill, but does not wish to speak. And then, Kay Tattersale (?) has signed in, in favor of the bill, but does not wish to speak. Jason Stock from the New Hampshire Timberland Owners Association signed in, in favor, but does not wish to speak. David Micciche from Amherst signed in, in opposition, but does not wish to speak. William Klapproth signed in, in favor, but does not wish to speak. Ann Ross of the Office of

gol

Consumer Advocate signed in, in favor, but does not wish to speak. Linda Rauter has spoken ... has signed in on her own behalf and then it says, "with strengthening of amendment," and does not wish to speak. Jane Doherty from the Environmental Responsibility Committee, Episcopal Diocese, and some other things, can't read all the words.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Wasn't enough paper for you, right?

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Yeah, I know we need a bigger block. Good afternoon. Welcome.

Jane Doherty, Environmental Responsibility Committee, Episcopal Diocese: Good afternoon Mr. Chairman and the rest of the Committee. I will be very brief because I am representing what we call the Environmental Responsibility Committee of the Episcopal Diocese of New Hampshire. And I am in, we are all very much in favor of the bill and I also was involved and testified last year, and this bill is so much better that it's incredible actually. Many good things have been said this afternoon that, if they haven't been said, we have to say it. But I want to make the point that you, Senator Odell, I do not want to see this bill go down. Our Committee does not want to see the bill go down. And so much good work has been done. We could fine tune it, but we haven't got ... we don't know what will happen if we try to fine tune it. You know more about the politics than I do, but I've heard it may disappear if we fine tune it. And there are already many good aspects and there are some accountability amendments added by the House to which are very good, you know, to ask Public Service to report back.

Now there are several things I want to add. And this is ... it was referred to, but you didn't see a copy. It's too bad we don't all have a copy, "Mercury Connections," it comes from BioDiversity Research Institute and it is a compilation of seventeen scientific articles on mercury in the environment in the northeastern United States. And, some of the facts you heard are in here, but what I wanted to point out is something that didn't come up, exactly. This is under, on page 19, and it says, "What is a hot spot and how is it measured?" I won't go into all of that, but the scientist measured the concentration of mercury in fish, loons, bald eagles, mink and river otter and then generated a map of the hot spots in the northeastern United States. Most of them did not show any lead to a particular source. When reference to your worry about where it's coming from, however this is here in black and white. If you want, you can have somebody Xerox it for you. The two exceptions are the biological hot spots near large point sources in southeastern New Hampshire and a defunct chlorine factory in Orington, Maine. And the researchers, the

pol

reference for the research is given for both those reports. So that's something I wanted you to know.

So being downwind in the southeastern part has been scientifically established that it's related to the Bow Plant. Another thing that's in here is that they're now finding mercury in insect eating forest birds. So the influence of mercury in the wildlife is going far beyond what we expected. So that's another important thing.

Now my last point is just a funny one, but not so funny. We did have somebody who objected to the time lines and gave a lot of construction experience. Unfortunately for him, my daughter lived next to the big dig. (Laughter.)

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: I was going to bring it up. (Laughter.)

Ms. Doherty: I would never in my life, if I were a professional engineer mention the central artery (laughter) because it certainly wasn't timely nor did it even work.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: There's just a few cost overruns.

Ms. Doherty: That's all I wanted to say.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Well, thank you Ms. Doherty for being here. Any questions? If not, thank you very much.

Ms. Doherty: You're welcome.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: And I'll call Pam Kelly from New Hampshire Faithful Democracy.

Pam Kelly, New Hampshire Faithful Democracy, New Hampshire and Vermont Districts, Unitarian Universalist Social Responsibility: Can I seed my time to Catherine Corkery? Right now, because what I have to say is very short.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Go ahead and say it.

Ms. Kelly: All right. I'm from New Hampshire Faithful Democracy. It's the network of Unitarian Universalist Churches bound together. I have a written testimony I can give you.

Please see written testimony of Pam Kelly, New Hampshire Faithful Democracy attached hereto and referred to as attachment #17.

But I noticed that you all, all men, may not be as aware as women of how to save money. I mean we are just shopper experts is what I want to say. So I've noticed that you're like not paying to much attention. But the important thing I want you to know ...

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Let me just back up a little bit.

Ms. Kelly: Okay. (Laughter.)

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: No I just want to make a comment.

Ms. Kelly: Umhm.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: I was in a Committee meeting the other day and things got out of hand with comments like that.

Ms. Kelly: Okay.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Understand that there are several Committee meetings going on parallel to this.

Ms. Kelly: Yes.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Most of us started anywhere from 7:30 a.m. to 8:00 a.m. this morning.

Ms. Kelly: My apologies.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: I want you to know that people here work very, very hard. They're all volunteers. They try to do the best job.

Ms. Kelly: Yes sir.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: So when we don't look as if we're attentive, please know we're professionals that are learning while we're doing many monthly tasks, so I ...

Ms. Kelly: Okay.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: I caution.

Ms. Kelly: I'm just teasing you really. I think the message that has been brought forward is that we could save money here. We could save money if we get it done early because construction costs are less, we could save money because we're not paying those sulfur dioxide trading

pol

costs of up to twenty or thirty million a year. So if we're interested in supporting the ratepayers, this might really be something to pay attention to.

And from the Unitarian Universalist point of view, as people of faith, we have seven principles, one of which is to affirm and promote respect for the interdependent web of existence of which we're a part and this would improve our ability to meet those expectations because the faster they clean up the better. And mercury if we try trading mercury, we're not actually benefiting the state, we're undermining our ability to clean up the mercury waste.

So we urge you to represent the people of New Hampshire, not just institutional interests, but we urge you to vote your conscious for the long time interests of us all. We're all a part of this interdependent web. We're linked into a global community through thin life supports to the blue planet of which we're a part. We ask you to think beyond the quarterlies, to the quarter centuries and protect our health, our air and water, which is the real long-term interest bearing account with compounding interest that we'll benefit from in the long run.

So we ask you to look at your conscious and vote your conscious and we really do appreciate your work, your long term work, your hard work over a long period of time and over a long day.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you for your comments. Senator Burling?

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: I'd like to simply make a comment. I've been a minority member of this legislature for sixteen years. I've been in public life as a democrat for thirty years.

Ms. Kelly: Yes sir.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: I've been trying to do exactly what you exhort us to do.

Ms. Kelly: Umhm.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: And every day of my public life, sometimes I have to accept less than everything I want.

Ms. Kelly: Umhm.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: In order to get anything of value.

Por

Ms. Kelly: Umhm.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: This is one of those times. And the fact that we are all of the masculine persuasion up here is an accident of Committee assignment, not a cabal or consortium to suppress the interests of women in the environment. I really am profoundly upset by what you said.

Ms. Kelly: All right. I'm sorry about that.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: And I just want you to know that because I got up at 6:00 o'clock to come down here.

Ms. Kelly: Umhm.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: As I do every morning.

Ms. Kelly: Yes sir.

Senator Peter H. Burling, D. 5: Thank you for your input.

Ms. Kelly: Okay. Well I appreciate your ...

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Any questions? Seeing none, thank you very much. I'll call on Catherine Corkery.

<u>Catherine Corkery, New Hampshire Sierra Club</u>: Thank you Mr. Chairman and Committee members.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Good afternoon.

Ms. Corkery: I appreciate your time to listen to all the testimony and I understand the time pressure you're under, and I ask ... I won't read over my testimony because I know ... but I would like to point out a few, sort of highlights that we've heard from the testimony, namely, the ... Well, firstly the inter-pollutant trading component of the bill. No other state has gone this route of trading apples for oranges. The STA when the Clean Power Act was first being debated, I was there and I heard the discussion of trading apples to oranges and how the intent of the bill was not to do that, but to instead keep our sulfur credits and our other credits as they are concerning their own pollution.

Please see prepared testimony of Ms. Catherine Corkery, New Hampshire Sierra Club attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #18.

This bill does exactly ... does not do that at all. It provides a mechanism where the utility is able to acquire mercury credits and switch them into sulfur credits without reducing sulfur. I'm going to emphasize that. They get credit for not reducing sulfur. They get a sulfur credit for not reducing sulfur, that's what I wanted to say. Nobody in other states are able to do that and as equating a pollutant that has a method of mitigation, if a pollutant like mercury, a neurotoxin, that can harm women and children developmentally is a very dangerous thing to do. And it's very radical; it's very controversial. And no other state has done that. I wanted to emphasize that.

Secondly, I understand the time pressures and I know there's a lot of things that are going on here and there is an understandable reason to get this bill in now, but there's also an obligation to ratepayers to make sure that at the end of the day all the ideas get a fair shake. And that there is a guarantee to the ratepayers that this is the cheapest way to accomplish acceptable environmental standards with acceptable ratepayer costs. This bill that started in October of 2005, this ... the writing of this bill has not seen an economic analysis from someone outside, from a third party. And, I'm not sure if this Senate wants to carry on that sort of responsibility. And having that said, I do want to agree that I want a bill passed. I do not want to derail this bill. This is a good start and the Senate and the House have a discussion when a bill goes into the committees and I appreciate that hard work that you have to do in order to have that discussion, but it is also that it has a potentially huge impact on ratepayers and the environment, and I ask for your caution.

And lastly, I notice that you Chairman were looking at this last page, it includes all the different states that have and are dealing with a mercury reduction program; some that are legislative, some are rulemaking and some are ... one is a Governor's Executive Order, that's it. Thank you.

Please see "NH Clean Power Coalition" and "States Tackling Mercury Pollution From Coal-Burning Power Plants," submitted by Catherine Corkery, New Hampshire Sierra Club attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #19.

And, you'll see they have five year time lines that are involved with the mercury. Some of them are associated with the output of energy, other ones are associated with the control and I think Georgia did a really good job at describing the difference between reducing emissions and controlling. That's a real different sort of way to look at things. And I just hope that you get some time to look at that, and with that I will end my testimony and take any questions.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you very much for your comments. Senator Letourneau?

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you.

Ms. Corkery: You're welcome.

ibe y

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Were you here when Chairman Ross from the House spoke and when the gentleman from New Hampshire Audubon spoke?

Ms. Corkery: I was.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: They talked about this almost year long process that they've gone through. Did you folks have a seat at that table?

Ms. Corkery: The language, well there were Committee hearings and work sessions throughout the summer and we attended those. There was limited access outside of the Committee room itself. We did attend some meetings, but we were informed rather than invited to negotiate in the negotiations.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you. One last question. The Audubon Society provided us with a similar breakdown of some of the states that have brought in Mercury and sulfur emission reductions, and they also included the caveats that were included in those. So while some of those may be shorter time frames, if they can't make the standards they're given a pass with a waiver.

Ms. Corkery: Sure, and in fact a comment to that. You're also talking about states that have more than one power plant that's being fitted. Pennsylvania, for instance, has thirty-five different power plants. Illinois, I'm not even sure how many power plants Illinois has, but when you're talking about these different caveats, they're dealing with a state-wide cap in some cases, not a plant-by-plant case. Here we're also dealing with a state-wide cap. But with those allowances they are taking a larger group of power plants into consideration.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Some of which already (inaudible).

Ms. Corkery: Right, the Massachusetts one. Some of them already have ... and actually to PSNH's credit, they're half way there. They have the SCR the PS ... I forget what it's called ... all this equipment. This is like the last step. The last step to make it a very clean power plant.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you.

Ms. Corkery: You're welcome.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Any other questions? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.

Ms. Corkery: You're welcome.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: And for being here. I'll call on Beth D'Ovidio?

Beth D'Ovidio, American Lung Association of New Hampshire: D'Ovidio. Very good.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: D'Ovidio. Practicing. Good afternoon.

Ms. D'Ovidio: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, Senators. For the record my name is Beth D'Ovidio. I'm representing the American Lung Association of New Hampshire and I do have a letter to, copies to give to each of you.

Please see prepared testimony of Daniel Fortin, President and CEO of the American Lung Association of New Hampshire, submitted by Beth D'Ovidio, American Lung Association of New Hampshire attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #20.

Earlier on in the day, we have heard some testimony about asthma in the state and we felt that we would be remised to our mission if we did not let you know of our support of this legislation as it is written. I'll try to be very brief.

We know that the scrubber technology is reputed to result in the decrease of at least ninety percent of the sulfur dioxide emissions caused by power plants.

And the major health impact of sulfur dioxide is on population groups especially susceptible to the pollutant's effects because of pre-existing conditions, especially asthma. And our mission is to assist those living with lung disease to breath easier and breath longer and we feel that the passing of this bill will assist in that.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Thank you very much.

Ms. D'Ovidio: Thank you very much.

John

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Any questions? If not, thank you.

Ms. D'Ovidio: Thank you.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Elizabeth Skipper signed in on behalf of herself, supports with recommendations to strengthen it, but does not wish to speak. Anne Arsenault signed in, in favor of the bill but does not wish to speak. John Tuthill signed in, in favor and wishes to speak, favors the amendment to strengthen. I think I don't see John, okay. Michael Giaimo to speak in favor.

Michael S. Giaimo, Business and Industry Association of New Hampshire (BIA): Good afternoon.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Good afternoon.

Mr. Giaimo: Michael Giaimo l'm with the Business and Industry Association and they are ... in my employment there l'm Vice President for Energy and Environmental Affairs.

BIA appreciates the opportunity to lend our support to HB 1673. I certainly will be as brief as possible. First and foremost, the BIA supported HB 284 four years ago. The bill that I'm referring to is, "The New Hampshire 4 Pollutant Bill." This legislation, HB 1673 brings fulfillment to that legislation; and for So_x, NO_x, CO₂ and mercury legislation. So it brings a ... it makes a bill that's a theory, a reality. It will significantly minimize sulfur and mercury pollution. It does so with minimal rate impacts. It is a reasonable piece of legislation with realistic and achievable time limits and pollution limits.

In conclusion, HB 1673 is a cost-effective and maybe the most cost-effective way of controlling plant emissions. So with that I'd be happy to take any questions. I have written testimony. I'll submit it to the clerk and pass them around.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Please.

Please see prepared testimony of Michael S. Giaimo, Esquire, Vice President, Energy and Environmental Affairs, Business and Industry Association attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #21.

Seeing none, thank you very much or being here.

Any questions?

Michael Giaimo, Esquire: Thank you.

pol

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Mr. Will Abbott was here to speak in behalf ... and I don't see Will ...

Unidentified Speaker: I think he left.

Senator Bob Odell, D. 8: Okay. And we have Paul Doscher has signed in, in favor of the bill representing New Hampshire Council of Trout Unlimited, but does not wish speak. And with that, we have concluded our Public Hearing and I'll close that hearing on HB 1673.

Hearing concluded at 6:00 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Deborah A. Chroniak Senate Secretary September 19, 2006

21 Attachments











